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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT _ _
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS Mchael N, Milby, Clark
HOUSTON DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ;
NI D H _ O 7 - 1 2 9

V. : NO:

BAKER HUGHES SERVICES : PLEA AGREEMENT
INTERNATIONAL, INC.,

Defendant.

The United States of America, by and through Mark F. Mendelsohn, Deputy
Chief, and John A. Michelich, Senior Trial Attorney, United States Department of
Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section (the “Department” or the “Fraud
Section”), the defendant, BAKER HUGHES SERVICES INTERNATIONAL,
INCORPORATED (“BHSI”), and the defendant’s counsel, Reid M. Figel, Esq.,
Kellogg, Huber, Hansen, Todd, Evans & Figel, P.L.L.C., pursuant to Rule
11(c)(1)(B) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, state that they have
entered into an agreement, the terms and conditions of which are as follows:

The Defendant’s Agreement

1. Defendant BHSI agrees to waive indictment and plead guilty to a

three-count criminal information filed in the Southern District of Texas charging

BHSI with conspiracy to violate the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977



(“FCPA”), as amended, 15 U.S.C. §§ 78dd-1, et. seq., in violation of 18 U.S.C. §
371 (Count One); a substantive violation of the FCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-2(a)
(Count Two); and aiding and abetting the falsification of books and records in
violation of 15 U.S.C. §§ 78m(b)(2)(A), 78m(b)(5) and 78ff(a), and 18 U.S.C. § 2
(Count Three). The defendant further agrees to persist in that plea through
sentencing and, as set forth below, to fully cooperate with the United States.

2. This plea agreement is between the Department and the defendant
BHSI, and does not bind any other division or section of the Department of Justice
or any other federal, state, or local prosecuting, administrative, or regulatory
authority. This agreement does not apply to any other charges other than those
specifically mentioned herein.  However, the Department will bring this
Agreement and the cooperation of BHSI, its direct or indirect affiliates,
subsidiaries, and parent corporations, to the attention of other prosecuting
authorities or other agencies, if requested.

3. Defendant agrees that this Agreement will be executed by an
authorized corporate representative. Defendant further agrees that a Resolution
duly adopted by the Board of Directors of Baker Hughes, on behalf of its
subsidiary BHSI, in the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 3, or in a

substantially similar form, represents that the signature on this Agreement by BHSI



and its counsel are authorized by the Board of Directors of Baker Hughes, on
behalf of its subsidiary BHSI.

4, Defendant BHSI agrees that it has the full legal right, power and
authority to enter into and perform all of its obligations under this Agreement and
defendant agrees to abide by all terms and obligations of this Agreement as
described herein.

5. Defendant agrees that any fine or restitution imposed by the Court
will be due and payable within five (5) business days from the date of sentencing,
and defendant will not attempt to avoid or delay payments. Defendant further
agrees to pay the Clerk of the Court for the United States District Court for the
Southern District of Texas the mandatory special assessment within five (5)
business days from the date of sentencing.

6. Defendant agrees that if the company or any of its direct or indirect
affiliates, subsidiaries, or parent corporations issues a press release in connection
with this Agreement, Defendant shall first consult the Department to determine
whether the text of the release is acceptable, and shall only issue a press release
that has been deemed acceptable to the Department.

7. Defendant BHSI agrees that in the event it sells, merges or transfers

all or substantially all of its business operations as they exist as of the date of this



Agreement, whether such sale(s) is/are structured as a stock or asset sale, merger,
or transfer, BHSI shall include in any contract for sale, merger or transfer, a
provision fully binding the purchaser(s) or any successor(s) in interest thereto to
the obligations described in this Agreement.
The United States’ Agreement

8. In exchange for the corporate guilty plea of BHSI and the complete
fulfillment of all of its obligations under this Agreement, the Department agrees
not to file additional criminal charges against BHSI for any of the corrupt
payments described in the Statement of Facts attached as Exhibit 1. This
Agreement will not close or preclude the investigation or prosecution of any
natural persons, including any officers, directors, employees, agents or consultants
of BHSI, or of any other Baker Hughes entity, including all of its direct or indirect
affiliates, subsidiaries, or parent corporations, who may have been involved in any
of the matters set forth in the Information, Statement of Facts or in any other
matters.

Factual Basis

0. Defendant BHSI is pleading guilty because it is guilty of the charges

contained in the Information. Defendant BHSI agrees and stipulates that the

factual allegations set forth in the Information are true and correct, that it is



responsible for the acts of its officers and employees described in the Statement of
Facts attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 1, and that the Statement
of Facts accurately reflects its criminal conduct.
Defendant’s Obligations
10.  Defendant BHSI agrees:

a. To plead guilty as set forth in this Agreement;

b. To abide by all sentencing stipulations contained in this
Agreement;

C. To: (i) appear, through its duly appointed representatives, as
ordered for all court appearances; and (ii) obey any other ongoing court order in
this matter;

d. To commit no further crimes;

€. To be truthful at all times with the Court;

f. To pay the applicable fine and special assessment;

g. To create and implement a Compliance Code which, at a
minimum, contains all of the obligations and provisions described in the
Compliance Code attached as Exhibit 2 hereto and incorporated herein; and

h. To ensure that in the event BHSI sells, merges or transfers all or

substantially all of its business operations as they exist as of the date of this



Agreement, whether such sale(s) is/are structured as a stock or asset sale, merger or
transfer, BHSI shall include in any contract for sale, merger, or transfer a provision
fully binding the purchaser(s) or any successor(s) in interest thereto to the
obligations described in this Agreement, including the obligations described in
Exhibit 2 with respect to a Compliance Code.

11.  BHSI shall continue to cooperate fully with the Department, and with
all other authorities and agencies designated by the Department, and shall
truthfully disclose all information with respect to the activities of BHSI and its
present and former directors, officers, employees, agents, consultants, contractors
and subcontractors thereof, concerning all matters relating to corrupt payments in
connection with their operations, related false books and records, and inadequate
internal controls about which BHSI has any knowledge or about which the
Department shall inquire. This obligation of truthful disclosure includes the
obligation of BHSI to provide to the Department, upon request, any document,
record, or other tangible evidence relating to such corrupt payments, books and
records, and internal controls about which the Department shall inquire of BHSI.

a. The Department specifically reserves the right to request that

BHSI provide the Department with access to information, documents, records,



facilities and/or employees that may be subject to a claim of attorney-client
privilege and/or the attorney work-product doctrine.

b. Upon written notice to the Department, BHSI specifically
reserves the right to withhold access to information, documents, records, facilities
and/or employees based upon an assertion of a valid claim of attorney-client
privilege or application of the attorney work-product doctrine. Such notice shall
include a general description of the nature of the information, documents, records,
facilities and/or employees that are being withheld, as well as the basis for the
claim.

c. In the event that BHSI withholds access to the information,
documents, records, facilities and/or employees of BHSI, the Department may
consider this fact in determining whether BHSI has fully cooperated with the
Department.

d. Except as provided in this paragraph, BHSI shall not withhold
from the Department, any information, documents, records, facilities and/or
employees on the basis of an attorney-client privilege or work product claim.

Waiver of Constitutional Rights
12. BHSI knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily waives its right to

appeal the conviction in this case. BHSI similarly knowingly, intelligently, and



voluntarily waives the right to appeal the sentence imposed by the court. In
addition, BHSI knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily waives the right to bring a
collateral challenge pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2255, challenging either the
conviction, or the sentence imposed in this case, except for a claim of ineffective
assistance of counsel. BHSI waives all defenses based on the statute of limitations
and venue with respect to any prosecution that is not time-barred on the date that
this Agreement is signed in the event that: (a) the conviction is later vacated for
any reason; (b) BHSI violates this Agreement; or (c) the plea is later withdrawn.
The Department is free to take any position on appeal or any other post-judgment
matter.
Penalty Range

13.  The statutory maximum sentence that the Court can impose for a
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371 is a fine of $500,000 or
twice the gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offense, whichever is greatest,
18 U.S.C. §§ 3571(c)(3) and (d); five years’ probation, 18 U.S.C. § 3561(c)(1); and
a mandatory special assessment of $400, 18 U.S.C. § 3013(a)(2)(B). The statutory
maximum sentence that the Court can impose for a violation of Title 15, United
States Code, Section 78dd-2, et seq., is a fine of $2,000,000 or twice the gross gain

or gross loss resulting from the offense, whichever is greatest, 15 U.S.C. §78dd-






